
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

February 2, 2022 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 845 3492 7593 

Password: 953751 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

I. Call to Order Taylor Jones 

 A.  Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Our Mission and Vision Taylor Jones 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action)  Taylor Jones 

III. Minutes (For Action) Taylor Jones 

IV. Community Communication  Taylor Jones 

V. Old Business Taylor Jones 

A. COVID-19 Preparation and Recovery - Incident Command Team Update Kim White,  

Director of Emergency Services 

B. Rules of Practice Governing Hearings Geoff Phillips, Legal Counsel 

C. Risk Management Program  Marty Kelsey 

D. Compliance Program  Marty Kelsey 

E. Employee Policy (from the Human Resources Committee)  Barbara Sowada 

1. Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment (For Action) Suzan Campbell, In-House Counsel 

2. Human Resources Charter (For Action) Barbara Sowada 

F. Medical Staff Bylaws Dr. Brianne Crofts, Medical Staff President 

VI. New Business (Review and Questions/Comments) Taylor Jones  

A. Board Policy (from the Governance Committee)  Barbara Sowada 

1. CEO Evaluation (For Review)      

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

VIII.  Committee Reports 

A. Quality Committee Barbara Sowada 

B. Human Resources Committee  Barbara Sowada 

C. Finance & Audit Committee Ed Tardoni  

1. Bad Debt (For Action) 

January Committee Meeting Information 

D. Building & Grounds Committee Marty Kelsey  

E. Foundation Board Taylor Jones 

F. Compliance Committee Marty Kelsey 

G. Governance Committee Taylor Jones 

H. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee Taylor Jones 

1/87



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

February 2, 2022 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 845 3492 7593 

Password: 953751 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

I. Joint Conference Committee Taylor Jones 

IX. Board Review of iProtean Barbara Sowada 

X. Contract Review Suzan Campbell 

A. Contracts Approved by CEO since Last Board Meeting (For Your Information) 

1. iProtean 

XI. Medical Staff Report Dr. Brianne Crofts  

XII. Good of the Order                 Taylor Jones 

XIII. Executive Session (W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix)) Taylor Jones 

XIX. Action Following Executive Session Taylor Jones  

XV. Adjourn Taylor Jones 

 

2/87



OUR MISSIONOUR MISSION  

Compassionate care for 

every life we touch. 

OUR VISIONOUR VISION  

To be our community’s trusted 

healthcare leader. 

OUR VALUESOUR VALUES  

Be Kind 

Be Respectful 

Be Accountable 

Work Collaboratively 

Embrace Excellence 

 

OUR STRATEGIESOUR STRATEGIES  

Patient Experience 

Quality & Safety 

Workplace Experience 

Growth, Opportunity & Community 

Financial Stewardship 

3/87



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

January 5, 2022 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met via Zoom in regular 

session on January 5, 2022, at 2:00 PM with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees 

were present online at the call to order: Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Ms. Kandi Pendleton, 

Dr. Barbara Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni.  

 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Dr. Brianne 

Crofts, Medical Staff President; Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal Counsel; Mr. Jeff Smith, Sweetwater 

County Board of County Commissioners Liaison. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Mr. Jones led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Our Mission and Vision 

 

Mr. Kelsey read aloud the mission and vision statements.  

 

Mission Moment 

 

Ms. Richardson wished everyone a happy new year filled with happiness, health, prosperity, and 

peace. She congratulated the recent new year baby born at the Hospital. Ms. Richardson read aloud 

a note from Dr. Banu Symington recognizing Mr. Tim Bennett, Environmental Services, for giving 

handmade gifts throughout the Hospital over the holidays. She said the efforts at spreading cheer 

were touching and inspiring. Mr. Tardoni said a man contacted him and said he had a choice to 

obtain services in Evanston or MHSC. He chose our MRI and shared with Mr. Tardoni how much 

better our large bore is at MHSC.  

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Kelsey. 

Motion carried.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the December 1, 2021, regular meeting as presented was 

made by Dr. Sowada; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried. 

 

  

4/87



 

 

Minutes of the January 5, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

There were no comments. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

COVID-19 Preparation and Recovery – Incident Command Team Update 

 

Ms. Kim White, Incident Commander and Director of Emergency Services, provided a Covid-19 

update. She reported we continue to watch the omicron variant. She said we try to anticipate and 

do all we can to stay healthy. We are holding steady with staffing and nurse shortages. Our 

swabbing efforts are manageable, and we continue to administer monoclonal antibodies. Ms. 

White reported we are seeing other respiratory illnesses, as well.  

 

Rules of Practice Governing Hearings 

 

Mr. Phillips reviewed the change made following the previous meeting and said the information 

is in the meeting packet. Following approval, the information will be submitted to the Sweetwater 

County Clerk. The motion to approve the Rules of Practice Governing Hearings in the packet and 

notice as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried. 

 

Risk Management Program 

 

Mr. Kelsey said he has been doing a lot of reading and studying on the topic of compliance. The 

more he reads, he sees there is an extremely close alliance between risk and compliance. He said 

compliance deals with rules and regulations. Risk management helps protect us from risks that 

lead to non-compliance. Mr. Kelsey said he hasn’t received any document yet for the compliance 

plan. He said he knows staff are still working on the plan. He asked if it might be appropriate to 

change the title of the committee to Risk Management and Compliance. He said the topics are 

aligned and important. Ms. Richardson thanked Mr. Kelsey for the good input and said we will 

review as we continue to work on the plan. 

 

Medical Staff Bylaws 

 

Dr. Crofts reported the bylaws will be presented to the general medical staff later in January for 

review and approval. Following approval, they will be provided to the Trustees.   

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Employee Policy: Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment 

 

Dr. Sowada asked Trustees to review the information and send any questions and 

recommendations to Ms. Suzan Campbell, In-House Legal Counsel, and the information will be 

brought back to the Board next month. Mr. Kelsey said he thinks it is well done and likes the 

additions. He expressed concern the hostile work environment information may be too narrowly 

written.  

  

5/87



 

 

Minutes of the January 5, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

Human Resources Charter 

 

Dr. Sowada reviewed the proposed revisions. 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

Ms. Richardson provided a Strategic Plan update including Patient Experience, Quality and Safety, 

Community Outreach and Growth, Workplace Experience, and Financial Stewardship. She 

reminded everyone of the Cerner Go-Live timing of February 28, 2022. Ms. Richardson welcomed 

Dr. Crofts as the new President of the Medical Staff and said she will do an excellent job. She 

thanked Dr. Jacques Denker for all he did in that role last year.  

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Quality Committee 
 

Dr. Sowada reported the Committee did not meet in December.   

 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada reported the Committee met in December and the information is in the packet. 

 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni reported the information is in the meeting packet. The Board expressed appreciation 

to Ms. Richardson and Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer, for all they are doing in the area 

of finances and staffing. Mr. Kelsey said he thinks we need to take a real hard look at our expenses. 

He said he admires staff for doing the best we can. Ms. Richardson said we are definitely looking 

at all options to manage expenses in a better way and we are trying to anticipate and ensure we 

manage our obligations.  

 

The motion to approve Capital Expenditure Request FY 22-27 for $31,500 for Stryker equipment 

for surgery was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Dr. Sowada. Mr. Tardoni said this is single source 

because we already have another one from Stryker. Motion carried.  

 

The motion to approve the net potential bad debt of $999,965.63 as presented by Mr. Ron Cheese, 

Director of Patient Financial Services, was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion 

carried. Mr. Tardoni noted there has been a shift. He said surgery and patient combined is 

approaching the ER amount. Mr. Cheese introduced the Patient Navigation Team and reviewed 

their progress since starting the program. He said they went over $1,000,000 in savings for drugs 

for patients in addition to getting insurance coverage for patients.  

 

Building & Grounds Committee 

 

Mr. Kelsey reported he was unable to attend the meeting and asked Mr. Tardoni to report. Mr. 

Tardoni said a lot of projects are being completed and he said there is excellent information in the 

packet. 

 

6/87



 

 

Minutes of the January 5, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

Foundation 

 

Ms. Tiffany Marshall, Foundation Executive Director, reminded everyone we are one month away 

from the virtual Red Tie Gala event February 5. She reviewed plans for the week leading up to the 

event. Mr. Jones thanked the Board for their participation and support of the Gala. Ms. Marshall 

expressed appreciation for a recent donation of funds to purchase four mobile interpreting units 

and additional wheelchairs for the Hospital. 

 

Compliance Committee 

 

Mr. Kelsey reported the Committee did not meet in December. 

 

Governance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada reported the information is in the meeting packet.  

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee and Joint Conference Committee 

 

Mr. Jones said there was no update to report. 

 

BOARD REVIEW OF IPROTEAN 

 

Dr. Sowada said the Board looked at leading through transitions. Mr. Tardoni said the lessons we 

looked at spoke of uncertainty. He said the Board needs to keep their eyes open to what is 

happening in the community to see the financial impact and deal with uncertainty. He said we need 

to bring resources to staff. Mr. Tardoni said we need to know what is happening in this county. 

Mr. Kelsey said destination metrics caught his attention. What is our preferred future? He 

encouraged everyone to watch the risk management videos. He said it gives a good perspective of 

what risk management is in a hospital setting. Mr. Kelsey said there is a close tie-in between risk 

management and strategic planning. He said we need to manage our risks. Mr. Kelsey said it is up 

to the Board to determine where we want to be in the future and that involves risk-taking. Ms. 

Pendleton said she thought the videos were excellent. She said she liked the planning concepts. 

Dr. Sowada said the videos were timely regarding budget planning, Covid, and uncertainty. Mr. 

Jones said he feels we are well on our way to doing what the videos discuss and suggest. He noted 

the information on striking a balance. He said the duty of the Board is to look at balance. Dr. 

Sowada recommended the risk management videos for next month. She said the Governance 

Committee will discuss topics for the next six months at their January meeting.   

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Crofts reported the Medical Executive Committee met. She said she is excited about Cerner 

and said the hospital physicians are all trying to do their best to take care of patients the best way 

they know how. 

 

  

7/87



 

 

Minutes of the January 5, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

There were no comments. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Mr. Jones said there would be an executive session. He said the Board would leave the current 

meeting, go to another link, and then return to the original meeting for actions taken following 

executive session. He said the Board would take a 10-minute break and reconvene in executive 

session at 3:45 PM. The motion to go into executive session was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by 

Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried.   

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

At 5:24 PM, the motion to leave executive session and return to regular session was made by Dr. 

Sowada; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried. 

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Approval of Privileges 
 

The motion to approve the credentials and privileges for providers and non-physician providers as 

listed by Ms. Kerry Downs, Medical Staff Services Director, in executive session was made by 

Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. 

Credentials Committee Recommendations from December 14, 2021  

1. Initial Appointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Prachi Pawar, Neurology 

2. Initial Appointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Razvan Ducu, Hospitalist 

 Dr. Umar Bhatti, Hospitalist 

3. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 year) 

 Dr. Cielette Karn, Pathology 

 Dr. Scott Sulentich, Plastic Surgery 

4. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Scott Sullivan, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Lawrence Briggs, Tele Radiology (VRC)  

 Dr. Toby Enniss, Tele ICU (U of U) 

 Dr. Joanna Grudziak, Tele ICU (U of U)  

 Dr. Jack Morshedzadeh, Cardiovascular Disease (U of U) 

 Dr. Peter Crane, Neurology 

5. Reappointment to AHP Staff (2 years) 

 Tenny Hanson, Family Nurse Practitioner 

 Mark Sanders, Physician Assistant Family Medicine 

 Cathryn Koptiuch, Genetic Counselor (U of U) 

 

8/87



 

 

Minutes of the January 5, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

The motion to approve the terms of agreement for a non-physician provider as discussed in 

executive session and that the CEO sign the agreement was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. 

Tardoni. Motion carried. 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 5:26 PM.   

      

 

 

         ___________________________________ 

      Mr. Taylor Jones, President 
 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Secretary 

9/87



DRAFT

Current Status: Draft PolicyStat ID: 9775803 

Approved: N/A 
Review Due: N/A 
Document Area: Employee Policies 
Reg. Standards: 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES - NON-DISCRIMINATION 
AND ANTI-HARASSMENT 

1. Purpose 

DEFINITIONS 

I. threatening, humiliating, or intimidating; or work interference — sabotage — which prevents work from 

getting done; 

Verbal abuse or insults; and 

Cruel or vindictive conduct. 

Such behavior is contrary to the Hospital's culture, which requires that all employees be treated with 

dignity and respect. 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC or Hospital) is committed to maintaining an environment that 

encourages and fosters appropriate conduct among all persons and respect for individual values. Accordingly, 

the Hospital is committed to enforcing this Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment Policy at all levels in 

order to create an environment free from discrimination, bullying, harassment, sexual harassment and/or 

retaliation. Discrimination or harassment based on race, gender and/or gender identity or expression, color, 

creed, religion, age, national origin, ethnicity, disability, veteran or military status, sex, sexual orientation, 

pregnancy, genetic information, marital status, citizenship status, or on any other legally prohibited basis is 

unlawful and undermines the character and purpose of the Hospital. Discrimination, harassment, retaliation, 

and sexual harassment are unacceptable in the workplace. 

Any form of retaliation against anyone who has complained of or formally reported discrimination, 

harassment, or sexual harassment, or has participated in an investigation of such a complaint, regardless of 

whether the complaint relates to the complaining person or someone else, will not be tolerated, and violates 

both this policy and applicable law. The reporting of unlawful or discriminatory behavior is also known as 

whistle-blowing. 

The Hospital expects management level personnel to serve as models of appropriate conduct for other 

employees. and will hold them to a higher standard of accountability.  Management personnel must not only 

refrain from actions that violate this policy, but also refrain from any activity that would give the appearance of 

impropriety. 

Bullying Workplace bullying is repeated, health-harming mistreatment of one or more persons (the targets) 

by one or more perpetrators. It is abusive conduct that is: 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES - NON-DISCRIMINATION AND ANTI-HARASSMENT. Retrieved 01/2022. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9775803/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 1 of 5

10/87



DRAFT

I. Offensive or degrading remarks, verbal abuse, or other hostile behavior such as insulting, teasing, 

mocking, degrading or ridiculing another person or group; 

II. Racial slurs, derogatory remarks about a person's accent, or display of racially offensive symbols. 

III. Unwelcome or inappropriate physical contact, comments, questions, advances, jokes, epithets or 

demands; 

IV. Physical assault or stalking; 

V. Displays or electronic transmission of derogatory, demeaning or hostile materials; and 

VI. Unwillingness to train, evaluate, assist, or work with an employee. 

I. A hostile work environment results from harassing conduct that has the purpose or effect of 

unreasonably interfering with an employee's work performance, or creates an intimidating, hostile 

or offensive working environment.Hostile work environment harassment includes situations 

where a supervisor threatens a subordinate employee’s job or aspect of employment but does not 

carry out that threat. Hostile work environment harassment also includes situations where a 

supervisor, co-worker, or non-employee engages in behavior that meets the elements listed below 

and alters the employee’s work environment. 

• The elements of hostile work environment harassment are: 

• The behavior is unwelcome  

• The behavior is offensive to a reasonable person  

• The behavior is likely to negatively impact one or more employees because of an employee’s 

protected status  or protected class meaning discrimination that occurs based on gender (or 

gender identity), race, age, disability, sexual orientation or religion.   

• The behavior is severe or pervasive. 

• All of these elements must be met for a successful claim 

Discrimination is adverse treatment of any employee based on the protected class or category of persons to 

whom he/she belongs, rather than on the basis of his/her individual merit, with respect to the terms, 

conditions, or privileges of employment including, but not limited to hiring, firing, promoting, disciplining, 

scheduling, training, or deciding how to compensate that employee. 

Harassment is unwelcome verbal or physical conduct prohibited by law directed toward, or differential 

treatment of, an employee because of his/her membership in any protected group or on any other prohibited 

basis (e.g., race, gender and/or gender identity or expression, color, creed, religion, age, national origin, 

ethnicity, disability, veteran or military status, sex, sexual orientation, pregnancy, genetic information, marital 

status or citizenship status). The harasser can be the employee's supervisor, a supervisor in another area, a 

co-worker, or someone who is not an employee of the Hospital, such as a patient or visitor. 

Examples of such conduct include, but are not limited to: 

Hostile Work Environment 

Romantic/Consensual Relationships 

MHSC realizes that while it is not necessarily in the best interests of the Hospital or the employees 

involved, romantic relationships may develop between co-workers. Employees must behave in a 

professional manner while working at the Hospital or while at Hospital functions. 

It is important to keep romantic relationships separate from the work environment. MHSC prohibits 

romantic relationships between supervisors and their direct reports; relationships where one 

employee has greater power or authority over another; or where the relationship interferes with either 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES - NON-DISCRIMINATION AND ANTI-HARASSMENT. Retrieved 01/2022. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9775803/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 2 of 5

11/87



DRAFT

I. When submission to such conduct is made explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of employment or 

submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as the basis for decisions affecting an individual’s 

employment. 

II. Or such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual’s work 

performance 

III. Or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment. 

IV. All employees are  expected to conduct themselves in a professional and businesslike manner at all 

times. Conduct which may violate this policy includes, but is not limited to sexually implicit or explicit 

communications whether in: 

A. Written form, such as cartoons, posters, calendars, notes, letters, e-mails. 

B. Verbal form, such as comments, jokes, foul or obscene language of a sexual nature, gossiping or 

questions about another’s sex life, or repeated unwanted requests for dates. 

C. Physical gestures and other nonverbal behavior, such as unwelcome touching, grabbing, fondling, 

kissing, massaging, and brushing up against another’s body. 

COMPLAINT PROCEDURE 

I. If you believe there has been a violation of this policy, including sexual harassment, please use the 

following complaint procedure. The Hospital expects employees to make a timely complaint to enable the 

Hospital to investigate and correct any behavior that may be in violation of this policy. Report the incident 

to: 

A. HR Director 

B. Any Supervisor 

C. Senior Leader 

II. Your complaint will then be referred to HR Department who will investigate the matter and take 

employee’s work duties. Such situations can create an actual or potential conflict of interest. They 

may also lead to potential charges of sexual harassment or interfere with employee morale. It is for 

this reason that, should such a relationship occur, the supervisor involved must notify management 

or the Human Resources Department immediately. The Hospital will try to arrange a transfer. If no 

such transfer is available, one of the employees must terminate within 90 days. The decision as to 

which one resigns will be left to the two employees. 

Sexual Harassment MHSC strongly opposes sexual harassment and inappropriate sexual conduct. Sexual 

harassment is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or 

physical conduct of a sexual nature 

Quid pro quo sexual harassment occurs when 1) the employee is in a position of authority over the staff 

member/employee or 2) supervisor demands that an employee/subordinate satisfy sexual demands in order 

to receive job benefits, to continue employment, or as a basis for making any other employment decision 

(Quid Pro Quo sexual harassment). 

Whistleblower is an employee, who in good faith reports a violation he/she believes to be fraudulent, 

dishonest, illegal or unlawful. Such employee shall not be subject to retaliation, harassment or adverse 

employment consequences.  An employee who retaliates against someone who has reported a violation in 

good faith is subject to discipline up to and including immediate termination of employment. 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES - NON-DISCRIMINATION AND ANTI-HARASSMENT. Retrieved 01/2022. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9775803/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 3 of 5

12/87



DRAFT

corrective action. Your complaint will be kept as confidential as practicable. The Hospital prohibits 

retaliation against any employee for filing a complaint under this policy or for assisting in a complaint 

investigation.  If the Hospital determines that an employee’s behavior is in violation of this policy, 

corrective action will be taken, up to and including termination of employment 

 

III. All management and supervisory personnel have an affirmative duty and are required to promptly report 

any discrimination, harassment, retaliation or sexual assault/inapprpriate sexual contact that they 

observe, learn about from others, or reasonably suspect has occurred with respect to an employee. 

IV. INVESTIGATION AND DISPOSITION OF COMPLAINTS 

A. The Investigation 

1. The HR Director will conduct a prompt, thorough and impartial investigation of a complaint as 

necessary and appropriate and will make every effort to complete its investigation within thirty 

(30) days of a report of discrimination or harassment. 

2. If the investigation is not completed within 30 days, the investigator will provide the complainant, 

the alleged wrongdoer, and the department leader with notice of any extension and give them a 

new timetable for completion of the investigation. 

a. The investigation will include an interview with the alleged employee-victim.  It also may 

include interviews with the person who made the initial report, the complainant (if not the 

alleged victim), the alleged wrongdoer and/or any other person who may have information 

regarding the incident, each of whom is encouraged to cooperate with any investigation. 

b. The investigator may also review relevant documents. 

B. Findings and Recommendations 

1. The investigator will report his or her findings to the person who made the initial report, the 

alleged victim of discrimination, harassment, retaliation or sexual assault, the alleged 

wrongdoer, and relevant managers and supervisors. 

2. Where the investigator concludes that a violation of this policy has occurred, the Hospital will 

take prompt and appropriate remedial action, including disciplinary action.  

3. Corrective action is not progressive and if warranted it may include termination for first vioaltion 

of this policy. 

C. The Investigatory File 

1. Every complaint will trigger the creation of an investigatory file. 

2. The investigatory file will consist of the initial complaint, the final investigative report, including a 

record of the remedial action to be taken, if any, and any documents created or used during the 

investigation. 

3. For the duration of the investigation, the Human Resource Director will maintain the 

investigatory file. 

4. Upon completion of the investigation, the Human Resource Director will ensure that the 

investigatory report remains a separate file and is kept in a secure location. 

D. Responsibilities of Supervisors 

1. In cases where an investigation confirms a violation of this policy, the Department 

Supervisor must ensure that the prescribed corrective action is implemented. 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES - NON-DISCRIMINATION AND ANTI-HARASSMENT. Retrieved 01/2022. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9775803/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 4 of 5

13/87



DRAFT

Supervisors must provide confirmation to the Human Resources Director within 14 days 

that the recommended action has occurred. 

2. Only upon such confirmation will the Human Resource Director close the investigatory 

file. 

V. CONFIDENTIALITY 

A. The Hospital will maintain the confidentiality of the complainant and the privacy of the persons 

involved as in practicable and reasonable. 

VI. NON-RETALIATION 

A. Retaliation is any adverse action taken against an individual (applicant or employee) because he or 

she filed a charge of discrimination, complained to the Hospital or a government agency about 

discrimination on the job, or participated in an employment discrimination proceeding (such as an 

internal investigation or lawsuit), including as a witness. 

B. Retaliation also includes adverse action taken against someone who is associated with the individual 

opposing the perceived discrimination, such as a family member. 

C. Examples of retaliation include termination, demotion, refusal to promote, or any other adverse 

action that would discourage a reasonable person from opposing perceived discrimination. 

D. Retaliation is a serious violation of this policy, as well as federal, state, and local law. 

E. Anyone who believes he/she is a victim of retaliation should report the matter immediately according 

to the same procedure provided in this policy for making complaints of discrimination, harassment, or 

sexual assault. 

F. Any person found to have retaliated against another individual will be subject to the same disciplinary 

action provided under this policy for other violations. 

G. The Hospital will not in any way retaliate against an individual who reports a perceived violation of 

this policy, participates in any investigation, or otherwise opposes perceived discrimination, 

harassment, or retaliation, including as a witness. 

H. It will also not retaliate against anyone associated with the individual who engages in such protected 

conduct, such as a family member.  

I. MHSC further will not tolerate retaliation by any employee. 

VII. Any employee who believes they are being retaliated against should file a complaint as outlined above. 

Approved: Board 6.6.18 updated and approved by HR 12/21 Board of Trustees 

Attachments 

No Attachments 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES - NON-DISCRIMINATION AND ANTI-HARASSMENT. Retrieved 01/2022. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9775803/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 5 of 5

14/87



Human Resources Committee Charter 2020 Page 1 
 

Board Charter: The Human Resources Committee  

                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                          

Category: Board Committees & Committee Charters 
Title: Human Resources Committee 
Original Adoption:  June 14, 2010 
Revision: September 6, 2017; April 1, 2020 
 
            
   
  

Purpose: 
 
The purpose of the committee is to assist the Board in discharging its duties in respect to the 
oversight of the Hospital’s Human Resources function including, but not limited to, compliance, 
classification, compensation (including total rewards), policies, employee relations and safety. 
The creation and maintenance of an organizational culture that fosters a productive, engaged 
and safe workforce is a primary goal of the Committee. 

Authority: 

The committee has no expressed or implied power or authority. 

Responsibilities: 

In fulfilling its charge, the Human Resources Committee is responsible for the following activities 
and functions: 

 Assists the Human Resources Department with its charge to assure the Hospital is in 
compliance with all Federal and State labor laws, rules and regulations. Reviews Human 
Resource policies for compliance with all employment laws and practices, makes 
recommendations to Senior Leadership as deemed desirable.  

 Reviews employee policies to help determine the reasonableness of same and to help 
determine they are in compliance with employment laws and practices; recommends 
changes to Senior Leadership, Legal Counsel and the Board as deemed appropriate. 

 Reviews, on a periodic basis, employee compensation and benefits and the total rewards 
package; recommends changes to Senior Leadership, Legal Counsel and the Board as 
deemed appropriate. Periodically, reviews the Hospital’s employee classification plan and 
its compensation and benefits packages for market competitiveness of comparable 
positions and salaries, makes recommendations to Senior Leadership as deemed 
desirable. 

 Works with Human Resources staff and other hospital staff as appropriate, and with 
consultants as deemed necessary, to periodically review the Hospital’s classification and 
compensation plan(s); recommends changes to Senior Leadership, Legal Counsel and the 
Board as deemed appropriate. Assures that employee satisfaction/engagement surveys 
are conducted periodically and monitors the implementation of actions based there on. 

15/87



Human Resources Committee Charter 2020 Page 2 
 

 Reviews the bi-annual employee satisfaction/engagement survey and 
monitors the implementations of improvement actions based on the 
survey(s).  

 Monitors the monthly employment reports in light of industry standards and 
Hospital trends. 

Composition:  

The committee shall consist of two (2) members of the Board, one of whom shall serve as chair, 
the Legal Executive/General Counsel, Chief Executive Officer and the Human Resources Director. 
These five (5) committee members shall be the voting members of the committee. Staff to this 
committee include support personnel from appropriate MHSC departments such as the Chief 
Nursing Officer, Chief Clinical Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Finance and HR, who will not have 
voting privileges. 

Meeting Schedule: 

The committee shall meet monthly, or as needed. 

 

Reports:  

The committee will regularly receive and review the following reports, and executive summaries 
will be reported to the Board:  

 Comprehensive personnel turnover reports and including physician turnover 

 Contract staff statistics by position 

 Vacancy rates by position 

 Unexpected sick leave rates and worker’s compensation claims 

 Employee engagement survey results when available 

 Injury and accident statistics  
 

 

16/87



1 
 

Board Policy 

CEO Evaluation Policy 

 

Purpose: 

The purpose of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Performance Evaluation Policy is to provide a 

documented process for the Board to follow for evaluating the CEO’s performance, providing him/her 

with feedback, and determining his/her compensation. 

Policy: 

It is the duty of the Board of Trustees (Board) to annually evaluate the performance of the Chief 

Executive Officer (CEO). The purpose of the CEO evaluation is to provide timely, clear, and focused 

feedback to the CEO about how well s/he is 1) performing in the key performance areas identified as 

most critical by the Board of Trustees in achieving the Hospital’s strategic objectives; 2) managing the 

hospital in a manner consistent with its mission, vision, and values; and 3) conducting business in 

compliance with commonly accepted business practices and professional ethics. 

Procedure: 

1. The CEO shall be evaluated annually, at the last meeting of Hospital’s fiscal year. The evaluation shall 

be based on criteria annually established by the Board1 and the CEO.  

2.The criteria used to evaluate the CEO shall be based on a variety of factors that support the hospital’s 

mission, vision, values, and strategic goals.  

3. Performance may be evaluated using the American Hospital Association’s (AHA) CEO Assessment form 

that has been customized to fit the Hospital’s needs, or using a monthly interview process where the 

chairs of the Board’s Committees provide feedback, as well as soliciting the CEO’s perspective. 

4. Regardless of method used, the CEO shall be evaluated using criteria established by the Board and 

agreed to by the CEO.  

5. Procedure for using the American Hospital Association’s CEO Assessment form. 

a. March, the chair of the Executive Oversight & Compensation (EO&C) committee shall contact 

the  AHA to have form customized to fit Hospital’s needs and have customized form sent to all 

Board members. 

b. April, Board members shall return completed forms to AHA, who will compile responses into a 

summary report that reveals an overall performance rating in each area and a summary of 

comments made by Board members and the CEO. 

c. May, the EO&C Committee shall review the results with the CEO and shall also review the 

CEO’s proposed goals for the coming year, ensuring mutually agreement and commitment.  

                                                           
1 Criteria is recommended by the Board’s Executive Compensation & Oversight Committee and approved by the 
Board. 

17/87



2 
 

d. June, the Board chair shall compile, for Board approval, a final report of the CEO’s 

performance evaluation and goals for the upcoming fiscal year. 

6. Procedure for using the monthly interview process. 

a. Each month, Committee chairs, as well as Committee members, may provide feedback 

regarding the CEO’s performance as it relates to that committee’s work regarding the Hospital’s 

mission, vision, and goals, as well as soliciting the CEO’s perspective. 

b. June, the Board chair shall compile, for Board approval, a final report of the CEO’s 

performance evaluation and goals for the upcoming fiscal year. 

18/87



 

  Page 1 of 3 

Confidential   1/29/2022 

Quality Committee Meeting 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

, 2021 

 
 

Present:  Voting Members: Kara Jackson (Quality Director), Dr. Barbara Sowada (Quality 

Board Chair), Ed Tardoni (Quality Board Member), Irene Richardson (CEO), Ann 

Marie Clevenger (CNO), Dr. Alicia Gray, Tami Love (CFO), Dr. Melinda Poyer 

(CMO), Leslie Taylor (Clinic Director) 

 

Non-voting Members:  Cindy Nelson, Valerie Boggs, Noreen Hove, Jennifer Roger, 

Corey Worden, Karali Plonsky 

 

Guest:  Taylor Jones (Board President) 

 

Absent/Excused:  Voting Members:  Dr. Kari Quickenden (CCO),  

  

Non-voting Members: Kalpana Pokhrel,  

 

Chair:   Dr. Barbara Sowada  

 

 

Approval of Agenda & Minutes 

Dr. Sowada presented the Agenda for approval. Dr. Poyer motioned to approve, Ms. 

Richardson seconded, Motion was approved. 

 

Dr. Sowada presented the November 17, 2021 Quality Minutes for approval. Mr. Tardoni 

motioned to approve, Dr. Poyer seconded.  Motion approved.  

 

Mission Moment 

Ms. Nelson shared a Thank you! from Kelly Frink from the United Way thanking the Hospital staff 

for their continued support. Mr. Tardoni stated he received a “generic” thank you and hoped 

they got a survey, because they wanted to say a lot of wonderful things! Ms. Richardson shared 

that she spoke on the radio with Johnny K and that he shared with her that he had had an 

opportunity to meet many of the Hospital staff, and complimented us on our amazing staff and 

how wonderful they are when they come and speak to the public. Dr. Sowada complimented 

the staff and especially the Quality Department for the excellent and comprehensively 

presented Quality packet. 

 

Old Business 

Dr. Clevenger reported on the Trauma Survey from June 30, 2021. The surveyors report starts with 

strengths, opportunities and recommendations, then go into deficiencies and 

recommendations. Tiffany Uranker was the Trauma Coordinator at the time and was listed as 

one of the strengths. Tiffany has since stepped down, with Mindy Aguirre taking over. Ms. Aguirre 

was present throughout the survey. Some opportunities were noted in Policy and Procedures 

and how they read, and ensuring follow-thru. Final report is a valid provisional status due to out 

deficiencies, which is good for 1 year. This allows us to continue to operate and bill for Trauma, 

but also time to correct those deficiencies and they will return to survey in 2023. 

 

 

19/87



 

  Page 2 of 3 

Confidential   1/29/2022 

Ms. Jackson reported on planning for the Quality Workshop. After discussion, it was decided to 

table plans for a few months until we get through the Cerner implementation. 

 

Ms. Jackson also reported that there were no findings from last month’s RCAs and that all have 

been closed. 

 

New Business 

Ms. Jackson reviewed the results from the December 16, 2021 Wyoming Department of Health 

Survey. This survey was on behalf of CMS regarding Nursing and Pharmacy services. We were 

aware of the complaint prior to the survey and had already taken corrective action before the 

Surveyor arrived. We will continue to monitor for sustainment through Patient Safety Rounds.  

 

Ms. Jackson walked us through the Patient Safety Plan. The plan was newly developed last year. 

We started it from scratch and correlated it with our launch of the Patient Safety Committee. 

We moved some things around and tried to structure it like our PIPS plan. We included 

definitions, outlined communication routes for patient safety initiatives, lessons learned and 

patient safety improvement work to ensure appropriate sharing of information with the 

organization. We added responsibilities to the Senior Leadership, Leadership, Quality 

department, staff and volunteers, plus added the Medical staff in. Dr. Sowada questioned on 

pg. 9 of plan, whether FMEA (Failure Mode Evaluation and Analysis) fit in with conducting of 

RCAs. Ms. Jackson stated FMEA would be used more for start of new services, looking for failure 

points and making corrections. 

 

Mr. Tardoni recommended a few possible changes: 1) Under Objectives, sentence #I – “To 

acknowledge risks to patient safety such that medical and human errors will occur in a complex 

environment” , feels like we’re acknowledging we want to make errors. We may want to 

reconsider the wording.  2) Objectives # XVII  - where are records kept ?  In Quality offices – 

should be state that?  3) Confidentiality – Wy Stat 35-2-910, use only the reference to the Statue, 

but not “write” the language, to prevent needs for rewriting should the language change. Ms. 

Jackson noted they will work with Suzan Campbell, Legal on this question.  4) Definition – a 

section number was missing and needs completed 

 

Dr. Sowada questioned whether we were ready to move forward with approval of Plan? Ms. 

Jackson stated she would like to confer with Suzan Campbell, Legal and bring back in February. 

 

Ms. Jackson reviewed the January Hospital Compare Preview and Star Rating Update.  Ms. 

Jackson noted that the Hospital Compare refresh is done every quarter, and this data can be 

used in the Star rating. Dr. Sowada questioned the takeaways from the Hospital Compare. Ms. 

Jackson stated looking at this data and knowing it was old data we knew that we had 

opportunities for improvement in sepsis, c.diff, and a few other categories. Dr. Sowada restated 

that the takeaways were “you as a hospital have been working on things, that right now are 

showing up in old data”. 

 

Ms. Richardson stated an ad hoc Quality committee, including Dr. Sowada and Mr. Tardoni, was 

working to see where we could make improvements. Ms. Richardson further noted that Mr. 

Tardoni had made an observation about Star ratings, she found interesting and asked him to 

share. Mr. Tardoni spoke about the Star Rating system and his research and evaluation of the 

system. He noted that our data was on par with facilities like St. John’s who received 5 Stars, 

while we received 2 Stars. Where they excelled was in the patient experience areas, i.e 

20/87



 

  Page 3 of 3 

Confidential   1/29/2022 

HCHAPS. In reality our quality was superior, where we fell down was in the rating of our surveys. 

We need to listen and value complaints and look for opportunities to improve. But, we do not 

need to be defeated, because our quality shows through. Dr. Poyer agreed with Mr. Tardoni’s 

assessment, that the Star rating is not representational of our staff and the quality of work 

performed here. Dr. Gray seconded Dr. Poyer’s statements, but also that we need to stress the 

importance of the surveys to patients – both good and bad helps us. Dr. Poyer agreed more 

surveys give us a better representation of the work performed.  

 

Ms. Richardson questioned from the Board’s perspective whether the continuation of Plain Tree, 

Empathy training and Patient-Centered care were valuable endeavors? Mr. Tardoni and Dr. 

Sowada both noted they “can not speak for the Board”, but as individuals. Consensus was 

continuation of our endeavors are valuable, but not to be discouraged by negative comments. 

 

Mr. Jones questioned the numbers for survey returns of phone calls vs. letters. Dr. Poyer agreed 

that responses can vary from both entities, based on individual’s preference. Dr. Sowada 

requested a report of those numbers and Ms. Jackson agreed to bring those numbers to the 

February Quality meeting. 

 

Corey Worden, Quality Analyzer presented and reviewed the Sepsis Control Charts for 

comparison. 

 

List of Measures Meriting Control Charts was presented and reviewed. It was agreed that this list 

is essential to monitor and that Control Charts, with their ease of interpretation, and visual 

impact will only help us continue to improve.  Ms. Richardson summarized the conversation with 

the concept that the Star rating isn’t perfect, but the endeavors and stride for quality are 

important and should be continued. 

 

The group agreed there was some confusion on shift in direction vs. presentation, and that 

additional information with the “why behind the what” is needed when presented to the Board 

for both their understanding and approval of the ongoing process.  

 

Medical Staff Update 

Due to lack of time update was not presented. 

 

Informational Items for Review/Discussion 

Due to lack of time informational items were not reviewed. 

 

 

 
Meeting Adjourned   The meeting adjourned at 10:05 am 

 

Next Meeting    February 16, 2022 at 08:15 am via ZOOM. 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________________________________      

Robin Fife, Recording Secretary 

21/87



Chair’s Report 

Human Resources Committee 

January 17, 2022 

 

The Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment Policy is ready for the second reading by the Board. The 

last sentence in the purpose section of the Human Resource Charter was revised to read: The creation 

and maintenance of an organizational culture that fosters a productive, engaged, and safe workforce is 

the primary goal of the Committee. This charter is ready for the Board’s second reading. 

 

Covid and the Great Resignation have noticeably impacted the hospital’s workforce. 

 

Staff discussed many of the ongoing initiatives for retaining and recruiting staff. Included in these 

initiatives are retention and sign on bonuses, crisis pay, and other financial incentives. Other initiatives 

also in progress include the use of more LPNs, early recruitment through Western Wyoming Community 

College and the University of Wyoming, and hire foreign-trained nurses. 

 

There were 36 new hires in January and 71 open positions. This is the largest number of open positions 

in a decade.  Nursing, respiratory therapy, and laboratorians are hard to fill positions.  

 

Contract labor continues to fill many of staffing shortages. Cost of contract labor for the last six months 

is $2.1 million. Senior leadership continues to work with WHA and our national legislators to cap the 

amount contract labor suppliers can charge. 

 

The Supreme Court upheld CMS covid vaccine mandate. Employees can opt out for religious and medical 

reasons. The Court did not allow an “opt out and test” option. The hospital has a committee reviewing 

employee’s petitions to opt out. Nationally, it’s expected that about 10-12 percent of employees will 

meet the opt out criteria. The hospital staff will need to be fully vaccinated by March 15, 2022. There 

has been multiple messaging to the staff regarding this CMS mandate. About 85% of the hospital staff is 

currently vaccinated. 

 

 

22/87



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Human Resources Committee Meeting – Minutes Draft 
Monday – January 17, 2022 
Zoom 
 
Trustee Member Present by Zoom: Barbara Sowada, Kandi Pendleton 
Voting Members Present by Zoom: Amber Fisk, Irene Richardson 
Non-Voting Members & Guests Present by Zoom: Tami Love, Amy Lucy, Ruthann Wolfe, Shawn 
Bazzanella, Edward Boggs, Cindy Nelson 
 
 
Barbara called the meeting to order.   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

The motion to approve the agenda with the addition of the non-discrimination and anti-harassment 
policy under old business was made by Barbara, second by Irene. Motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

The motion to approve the December minutes as presented was made by Amber, second by Irene. 
Motion carried. 
 
ROUTINE REPORTS 
 

Turnover 
 

Amber reviewed the data. She said our turnover rate for the previous rolling 12-month period is 25%. 
She said we have felt the impact of “the great resignation.” We are focused on hiring and have hired 36 
people in the past month. Amber reviewed our hiring plans including foreign nurse options. She said we 
are looking at all possible options to assist with recruitment including student loan repayment. Barbara 
asked about the possibility of different schedules for retired staff returning to the workforce. She asked 
staff to please let the Board know if there is anything they can do to be more supportive. Irene said 
leaders and clinical coordinators are working with staff and taking shifts so we may need to postpone 
some meetings again. Barbara said we must really think about what kinds of tasks leaders and clinical 
coordinators are doing and if something is just about checking a box, maybe that can be placed on 
pause. Irene agreed and said we have to prioritize things and patients come first along with helping staff 
feel safe with staff levels. Kandi said she appreciates the information in the packet and thanked Barbara 
for her comments.  
 
Open Positions & Contract Staffing 

 

Amy reported we have 70 open positions with 21 of those for registered nurses. Amber said she will e-
mail to the Committee the most recent job posting information. Amy said we have hired four LPNs on 
the hospital side and she said that is also part of our staffing plan ideas. Amber said we are working to 
create a float pool. Irene said we are also hiring CNAs and Techs to help provide as much helps to RNs as 
possible.  Irene provided a Supreme Court Covid vaccine mandate update. She said the Hospital is at an 
85% vaccination rate. We will not have any testing options; staff will need to be vaccinated or have an 
exemption. Amber said the exemption panel is meeting every week. Irene said exemptions have a 

23/87



 

Minutes of the January 17, 2022 Human Resources Committee 
Page 2 

mechanism for testing. Kandi asked for the criteria around exemptions. Irene said medical has to come 
from a provider. Our panel includes HR, Legal, one or two physicians, Infection Control, and they go 
through each request to see if it qualifies for an exemption. The Wyoming Hospital Association told 
Irene the benchmark is 10-12% of staff would qualify. Amber said we are being very careful and 
following all standards and laws.  

 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment 
 

Barbara said Suzan should make changes and present the information to the Board at the February 
meeting. She said it is important Suzan is at the meeting to walk everyone through the information and 
highlight the changes.  
 
HR Committee Charter 
 

Barbara reviewed some changes needed including adding the word “safe” and said she will forward the 
changes to Suzan to update. The Committee clarified the employee survey is every two years. Barbara 
said she will ask Suzan to clarify the language around the survey. Irene asked if the survey coming up 
would be the best use of our resources and asked if there is too much Covid-related influence. Amber 
said she does not believe we can push the survey off for another year and said she will check. She said 
the company will take that into account and reframe wording. Barbara asked to discuss and then bring 
back in the new business section for the February Committee meeting.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

AHA Metrics 
 
Barbara asked about the comparison of American Hospital Association information to our data. Amber 
said groups are meeting later in the week to discuss the metrics. Irene said she will send out the 
information to the group to review. Barbara said it is sobering data. There was a discussion of 
downstream impacts of Covid.  
 
Barbara shared a mission moment from the previous month’s board meeting. She said Ron Cheese 
reviewed a patient navigation presentation. She said it was a total feel-good moment for the whole 
community. Irene said Sue Kearns is a member of the Patient and Family Advisory Council. She invited 
Irene to meet with a group for coffee and there were former hospital employees there who were very 
supportive of the Hospital and what we are doing.  
 
The next meeting is scheduled Monday, February 21. Please let Amber know if the timing does not work 
and we can reschedule.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 4:10 PM. 

24/87



F&A COMMITTEE CHAIR REPORT TO THE BOARD JANUARY 2022 

Chair – Ed Tardoni 

 The Finance and Audit Committee met in Zoom format this month.  All voting members were present. 

F&A DATA FOR THE MONTH 

The usual F&A reports are included in the Board packet.  It should be noted that this was a record 

revenue month.  Of course, the impact to the bottom line is offset by increased costs and deductions 

from revenue.  Bad Debt this month is in excess of $1.2 million dollars. 

SPECIAL NOTE ON CLINIC OPERATIONS 

Board attention is directed to clinic revenue.  This month the clinic exceeded $2 million in monthly 

revenue.  That is a record number. That was a clinic goal that was set some time ago and has now been 

achieved.  Congratulations are in order for those involved. 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

Capital expenditures remain frozen so none will be presented for consideration at the February Board 

meeting. 

BUDGET PREPARATION 

The Finance and Audit Committee Budget Workshop is now scheduled for the March meeting. The 

Board Budget Workshop is scheduled for the April Board meeting. 

NEXT MEETING. 

The next Finance and Audit Committee meeting will be held February 23, 2022 at 1500 hours.  Kandi 

Pendelton will chair the meeting. 

 

 

 

25/87



 

 MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Finance & Audit Committee Meeting 

January 27, 2022 
 

 

Voting Members Present:  Mr. Ed Tardoni, Trustee-Chairman 

     Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Trustee 

Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Ms. Jan Layne, Controller 

 

Voting Members Absent:  None 

 

Non-Voting Members Present: Mr. Ron Cheese, Director of Patient Financial Services 

Dr. Kari Quickenden, CCO 

Dr. Ann Clevenger, CNO  

Ms. Angel Bennett, Director of Materials 

Dr. Israel Stewart 

 

Non-Voting Members Absent :  Dr. Ben Jensen 

Brad Kowalski, Interim Director of IT 

 

Guests:    Ms. Leslie Taylor, Clinic Director 

       

      

     Call Meeting to Order 
 

Mr. Tardoni called the meeting to order via teleconference at 3:02 PM.   

 

Approve Agenda 

 

A motion to approve the agenda was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Ms. Richardson. Motion 

carried.    
 

Approve Meeting Minutes 
 

A motion to approve the meeting minutes of December 29, 2021 was made by Ms. Richardson; 

second by Ms. Love. Motion carried.  Ms. Pendleton abstained as she was not in attendance. 

 

Capital Requests 
 

There were not any capital requests for January.  Capital purchases are frozen for the first quarter 

of 2022 unless it is an emergency purchase. 

 

Financial Report 

 

Ms. Love reviewed the financial information for December.  The gain for December was 

$304,253 with a year to date gain of $273,761.  Gross revenue was at a record high in December 

of $19,001,956.  The clinic also had a record high revenue month of $2,324,849.  She said we 

saw inpatient volumes very similar to November. The Average Daily Census and Length of Stay 

have also decreased, coming in closer to pre-pandemic ratios. The annual debt service coverage 

ratio was 3.49 and days of cash on hand decreased to 147. Our daily cash expense continues to 

26/87



 

 

Minutes of the January 27, 2022 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 2 

increase. Cash collections came in at $8.6 million.  We have paid back $3.4 million of the 

Medicare advanced payments.  The Net Days in AR have increased to 49.77. The expenses for 

December remained high at $9 million.  We are still seeing increased expenses in salary and 

wage, benefits, contract labor and physician fees due to COVID and higher acuity patients, staff 

shortages and the need to offer incentive pay to ensure coverage.   

 

We expect the revenue for January to come in at $17 million.  The collections are projecting to 

$8.5 million.  Deductions of revenue should come in around budget at 51%.  We are estimating a 

loss in January around $300k-$400k. 

 

Ms. Love said that we have applied for reimbursement from Wyoming Hospital Association 

regarding $289,000 in available funds to be used for contract staffing expenses. We are very 

grateful for any assistance from WHA as our YTD contract staffing is $2.1 million. 

 

Ms. Richardson added that it has been of goal of Ms. Taylor’s and herself to reach a $2 million 

revenue month in the clinic.  She said they have achieved this with less providers and decreased 

expenses than they had when she compared to 2016 numbers.  Ms. Taylor said that it takes 

everyone to achieve this and appreciates all the help and teamwork. 

 

Mr. Tardoni told everyone not to be discouraged concerning the financial criticism we are facing 

right now due to COVID.  Ms. Richardson said that often times people don’t look at the whole 

financial picture and take it out of context.   

 

 Mr. Cheese presented preliminary bad debt of $1,232,406.  The final number will be presented 

to the board for approval. 

 

Old Business 

 

Bond Refinancing 

 

Ms. Love reported Ms. Layne and herself worked with our auditors in January to work out the 

accounting side of all the transactions for the bond refinancing.  Our MADS (Maximum Annual 

Debt Service) number decreased with the refinancing of the bonds.  This will positively impact 

our Debt Service Coverage ratio for our bond covenants. 

 

Kaufman Hall engagement 

 

Ms. Richardson provided an update on the Kaufman Hall engagement surveys.  She said they are 

currently working on loyalist groups and the switcher category.  She has heard very positive 

feedback. She said we are hoping to have a report for the Board by the March Board meeting. 

 

      

     New Business 

 

FY23 Budget 

 

Ms. Love said that Ms. Layne sent out emails to leadership requesting them to start looking at 

capital budgets for next year.  We also ask them to look forward 3-5 years for any assets that 

27/87



 

 

Minutes of the January 27, 2022 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 3 

may be near end of life.  We will start operating budgets in March.  She also asked about when 

they would like to hold the Budget Workshop with the Board.  It was decided to hold this 

workshop in March.  The date is still to be determined.   

 

Nutrition Services Proposals 

 

Ms. Love said we had listed the Nutrition Services Proposals on the agenda for this meeting.  

She said we just received the last proposal yesterday, so they were not able to present them for 

this meeting.  They hope to have a recommendation for the Finance Committee by the February 

meeting.  Ms. Richardson said that the goal was to remain budget neutral with this change.  Ms. 

Pendleton asked what drove the decision to change.  Ms. Richardson said they first saw this at a 

WHA convention.  This seems to be the new industry trend.  It will offer more support for our 

staff regarding patient experience.   

 

Financial Forum Discussion 

 

Mr. Tardoni had a few questions and comments.  He said emailed answers were okay.  He was 

curious what the payment to Escape Day Spa was for.  Ms. Love explained that this for a 

purchase made for the WCRS grant.  This grant is used for Cancer patients.  Ms. Taylor added it 

was for gift certificates for massages for cancer patients.  He also wanted to make sure we are 

keeping of track of our leased equipment and making sure we do not have equipment we are no 

longer using.  He also noted that we should try to investigate our advertising effectiveness.  Are 

we reaching all area codes close to us?  Ms. Taylor said that the Clinic already has a program 

called Marketshare that tracks this information.   

 

 

 

Next Meeting 

 

The next meeting will be held February 23rd at 2pm.  Mr. Tardoni said he will not be available 

for the next Finance meeting.  He will ask Mr. Kelsey to sit in as a board member. 

 

Mr. Tardoni adjourned the meeting at 3:47pm. 

 

 

 
 

Submitted by Jan Layne 

 

 

28/87



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

ROCK SPRINGS, WY 

 

 

NARRATIVE TO DECEMBER 2021 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 

THE BOTTOM LINE.    The bottom line from operations for December was a gain of 

$304,255, compared to a loss of $191,068 in the budget.  This yields a 3.24% operating 

margin for the month compared to -2.37% in the budget. The year-to-date gain is 

$273,764, compared to a gain $939,708 in the budget.  The year to date operating margin 

is 0.51%, compared to 1.91% in the budget. 

 

The total net gain for December is $607,799, compared to a loss of $240,232 in the 

budget. Year-to date, the total net gain is $989,292, compared to a total net gain of 

$681,122 in the budget.  This represents a YTD profit margin of 1.83% compared to 

1.38% in the budget.  

 

REVENUE.  Revenue for the month came in at an all-time high of $19,001,956, over 

budget by $2,275,458.    Inpatient revenue is over budget by $181,725, hospital 

outpatient revenue was over budget by $1,691,589 and the Clinic was over budget by 

$402,144. Revenue is over budget by $6.3 million year to date. 

 

VOLUME. We saw inpatient volumes similar to prior month. COVID positive patients 

grew slightly towards the end of December.  The average daily census (ADC), came 

down to 13.7 in December.  The normal ADC prior to the pandemic was 12.  Average 

length of stay (LOS) decreased slightly to 3.5 days which normally averages 2.6 days.  In 

December, we averaged 3 COVID positive inpatients daily with a high of 6 near the end 

of the month.  This is down from an average of 10 in October and 13 in September.  ER 

visits, Births, Behavioral Health, Infusions, Clinic visits and Cancer Center visits are over 

budget. Outpatient visits, including Lab, Imaging and Surgery, are under budget in 

December. 

 

Annual Debt Service Coverage came in at 3.49. Days of Cash on Hand are 147.  Daily 

cash expense increased to $273,000 year to date.  

 

REDUCTION OF REVENUE.  Deductions from revenue are 51.5% in December and 

50.1% year to date, both under budget.  Total collections for the month came in at 

$8,653,005. The repayment of the Medicare Advanced Payment began in April and 

through December we have paid back $3.4 million of the $7.4 million received. 

 

Net days in AR increased to 49.77 days. We continue to meet the goals for AR greater 

than 90 days for all Payers.    

 

 

 

29/87



EXPENSES.  Total expenses in December remained high at $9,083,535, over budget by 

$814,605. Expenses are over budget $5,432,740 year to date of which $2,459,702 are 

COVID-19 related expenses.  The following line items were over budget in December: 

 

Salary and Wage – Salary and Wage is slightly over budget in December with 

the continued need for additional staffing such as door monitors and laboratory 

staff for testing and vaccines.  Due to staffing shortages, incentives continued 

through December to ensure shift coverage.  Retention bonuses were also paid to 

some clinical positions using Wyoming Hospital Association grant funding.   

Benefits – Group Health and FICA are over budget in December.  We have had 

several high dollar group health claims over the last several months. 

Contract Labor – Due to staffing shortages in clinical areas there are currently 

contract labor positions in ICU, Surgery, Emergency Room, Laboratory, 

Ultrasound, Respiratory Therapy, Behavioral Health and Social Services.  COVID 

related staff include door monitors and additional nursing, laboratory and 

respiratory therapy positions.  We have seen as much as an 175% increase in 

contract labor rates. 

Physician Fees – Locum coverage is over budget due to additional shift coverage 

for Hospitalists. 

Supplies – Lab supplies, Oxygen, Instruments, Patient Chargeables, Med/Surg 

supplies, Drugs, Food and Maintenance supplies are over budget in December. 

 

PROVIDER CLINIC.   Revenue for the Clinics in December is over budget by 

$402,144, also coming in at an all-time high of $2,324,849. Year to date gross revenue is 

$11,333,373, under budget by $526,410.  The bottom line for the Clinics in December is 

a loss of $212,166 compared to a loss of $443,546 in the budget.  The year to date loss is 

$2,827,978, compared to a budgeted loss of $2,330,986.  Deductions from revenue for 

the Clinics are at 44.6% year to date.  Clinic volumes remain over budget with 5,799 

visits in December. 

 

Total Clinic expenses for the month are $1,567,196, over budget by $38,650. Wages and 

Pharmacy expenses are over budget for December. 

 

OUTLOOK FOR JANUARY.  Gross patient revenue for January is projecting lower at 

$17 million, still over budget. The average daily census continues to decrease slightly, 

down to 13.1 halfway through the month.  Average length of stay is at 3.4 days.  We are 

averaging 4 COVID positive inpatients each day through the first several weeks of 

January. 

 

Collections for January are projecting close to $8.5 million as we continue to collect on 

the prior high revenue months.  Deductions of revenue are expected to come in close to 

budget at 51%.  Expenses will remain high in January due to continued staffing shortages 

and COVID related expenses.  The bottom line for January is estimated at a $300k - 

$400k loss.   

 

30/87



COVID RELIEF FUNDS.  We continue to research any new assistance funds that will 

be available for responding to the pandemic. These include federal, state and county 

funds. The Governor and the State of Wyoming have announced additional funds will be 

available from the ARPA funds allocated to the states.  Wyoming Hospital Association 

(WHA) and Health and Human Services (HHS) are working closely with the Governor 

and we are waiting to see how the funds will be distributed. 

 

We received $524,000 in November from WHA.  These funds were used for retention 

bonuses for positions most impacted by the shortages.   

 

We submitted our application for the combined American Rescue Plan rural funding and 

Phase 4 of the Provider Relief Fund which opened on December 29.  The total new 

funding is $25.5 billion, including $8.5 billion for rural healthcare and $17 billion for 

revenue loss and expenses associated with the pandemic. We received $1.4 million in 

ARP Rural funds in November and $708,000 in Phase 4 funds in December.  These funds 

can be used for any COVID related expenses or lost revenue. 

 

We also received notice from WHA for available funds to assist with contract staffing. 

The allocation for MHSC is for $289K and we have submitted documents to support the 

reimbursement for contract staffing.  Our year to date contract staffing expense is $2.1 

million. 

 

FISCAL YEAR 2023 BUDGET.  We are starting the FY2023 budget process.  

Department Directors are working on their 3–5 year Capital plans.  In February, we will 

start working with our Directors on their operating budgets.  We will be looking at 

scheduling the Board Budget workshop towards the end of February. 

 

 

31/87



32/87



33/87



34/87



35/87



36/87



37/87



38/87



39/87



40/87



41/87



42/87



43/87



44/87



45/87



46/87



47/87



48/87



49/87



50/87



51/87



52/87



53/87



54/87



55/87



56/87



57/87



58/87



59/87



60/87



61/87



62/87



63/87



64/87



65/87



66/87



67/87



68/87



69/87



70/87



71/87



72/87



73/87



74/87



75/87



76/87



77/87



78/87



Vouchers Submitted by MHSC at agreed discounted rate

July 2021 $5,878.09
August 2021 $0.00
September 2021 $0.00
October 2021 $46,738.87
November 2021 $0.00
December 2021 $0.00

County Requested Total Vouchers Submitted $52,616.96

Total Vouchers Submitted FY 22 $52,616.96

Less:  Total Approved by County and Received by MHSC FY 22 $52,616.96

Total Vouchers Pending Approval by County $0.00

FY22 Title 25 Fund Budget from Sweetwater County $273,488.00

Funds Received From Sweetwater County $52,616.96

 FY20 Title 25 Fund Budget Remaining $220,871.04

Total Budgeted Vouchers Pending Submittal to County $0.00

FY22 Maintenance Fund Budget from Sweetwater County $938,440.00

County Maintenance FY22 - July $304,298.79
County Maintenance FY22 - August $28,620.00
County Maintenance FY22 - September $0.00
County Maintenance FY22 - October $16,421.89
County Maintenance FY22 - November $0.00
County Maintenance FY22 - December $28,357.08

$377,697.76

 FY22 Maintenance Fund Budget Remaining $560,742.24

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
County Voucher Summary

as of month ending December 31, 2021

79/87



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…January Buildings and Grounds Meeting 
Date:  January 27, 2022 
 
Maintenance Metrics…Work orders are higher due to staffing shortages. Ed brought up an issue 
with water in the old Foundation area. 
 
Medical Imaging Renovation…Project is nearing completion. Probable completion timeline will 
be mid-February. Final punch lists will be prepared soon. 
 
S-1 Unit…Unit is working…still some issues to resolve however. 
 
Pharmacy Chemo Mixing Room…Cost of a temporary unit associated with this project deemed 
too much; thus, options are being considered. ST & B will work on designing an exhaust system. 
 
Dr. Sulentich’s Office…Bid opening will be last week in January. 
 
Building Automation System…not much progress at this time due to Vaughn’s work schedule. 
When the Medical Imaging project ends…work should be well underway. 
 
Generator ATS…still issues that John Kolb is helping the Hospital with. Lightning Eliminators is 
coordinating with Plan One and ST & B on design work. Hopefully, the project can be bid in the 
Spring. 
 
Bulk Oxygen Project…plans are still being developed. Work should be completed this summer. 
 
Special Purpose Tax Projects…discussion took place regarding possible projects. The 
Commissioners will sponsor a project for MHSC. State funds may become available for Covid-19 
related projects. A list of possible projects was presented by staff. 
 
MHSC Finances…discussion took place regarding holding off on capital projects until we get a  
clearer picture of the financial situation of the Hospital. 

80/87



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 

January 18, 2022 

 
 

The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on January 18, 2022, 

at 3:30 PM with Mr. Marty Kelsey presiding. 

 

In Attendance:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chair 

   Mr. Ed Tardoni - Trustee 

Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director 

Mr. Will Wheatley, PlanOne Architects 

   Mr. Fred Bronnenberg, Groathouse Construction 

   Mr. Jared Kershaw, ST&B Engineering 

 

Excused:  Mr. Gerry Johnston, Facilities Supervisor 

 

    

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the agenda.  Mr. Tardoni made a motion to approve the 

agenda.  Ms. Love seconded; motion passed. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the December 21, 2021 meeting. Mr. 

Tardoni made a motion to approve the minutes.  Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed. Mr. 

Kelsey abstained from the vote. 

 

Maintenance Metrics 

 

Mr. Horan said the maintenance metrics show open active orders higher as they are still down a 

couple employees.  There has also been some overtime due to snow storms in December and 

essentially on budget.  He said they treat any amount of snow to keep everything safe for patients 

and staff.  

 

Mr. Tardoni had a question regarding some water issues in the Foundation Lab he recognized 

recently.  Mr. Horan said the old soil lines in that part of the building continue to be a problem.  

This will be corrected when we do any type of renovation in that area. 

  

Old Business – Project Review 

 

Medical Imaging Renovation 

 

Mr. Wheatley said they are winding down.  This week they are finishing paint, ceilings and 

cabinetry.  Flooring will be completed next week.  There are some outstanding doors and windows.  

They will then start their commissioning activities.  Mr. Kelsey asked about the targeted end date 

of January.  Mr. Wheatley said they are still pushing for that date.  He expects he will be doing his 

final punch lists in a few weeks.  Mr. Kershaw said conservatively it will be the first week or two 

of February to include final details and clean up.  He said the commissioning of the area will go 

quickly as it is not as detailed as the HVAC project. 

81/87



 

 

Minutes of the January 18, 2022 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

 

S1 Unit 

 

Mr. Kershaw said they performed wide scale commissioning last month with the controls vendor.  

There are still some open issues they are working through entailing hardware and installation.  

Overall the unit is performing properly but they will continue to monitor the issue log.  

 

Pharmacy Chemo Mixing Room  

 

Mr. Wheatley said they had an internal discussion last week to look at other options for the space 

due to the potential cost of a temporary unit.  PlanOne Architects is working on three different 

concepts laying out potentials and will then loop in ST&B Engineering for their mechanical 

requirements for the exhausting of the system. 

 

Dr. Sulentich Office  

 

Mr. Wheatley said the pre-bid walkthrough was done last week with two general contractors and 

several subcontractors showing interest.  Bid opening is slated for next week.  The bidders were 

tasked with a creative work schedule to ensure all material is onsite before starting construction.  

Groathouse did withdraw as they are too busy at this time.  

 

Building Automation System 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked if there has been any progress from Vaughn’s.  Mr. Horan said he has seen some 

movement but Vaughn’s is still working on some demo around the Medical Imaging project.  There 

has been some conversation between Harris and Vaughn’s on this project but nothing concrete to 

report. He expects to see progress soon as the Imaging project winds down. 

 

Generator ATS 

 

Mr. Horan said Mr. John Kolb is still working on some minor issues.  All of the important pieces 

have been resolved with the exception of the manual transfer switch for the chillers.  He said 

Lightning Eliminators has been in touch with PlanOne and ST&B for their plans so they can do 

some preliminary work before they come onsite.  Mr. Horan has asked they have plans completed 

by early spring so we can be ready to bid and complete by lightning season. 

 

Tabled Projects   

 

Mr. Horan said he plans on having the plans for the Bulk Oxygen soon.  Mr. Tardoni updated the 

group and said the Rotary Club may still be interested in helping with the Waldner House retaining 

wall in the spring. 

 

Old Business – Other 

 

Special Purpose Tax Projects 

 

Ms. Richardson reported the Commissioners have agreed to sponsor our project but she is still 

unsure of the dollar amount.  She said there may be additional funds available through the State.  

82/87



 

 

Minutes of the January 18, 2022 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 3 

There will be more information coming out of the legislature.  These funds will need to be used 

for a COVID-related project.  The Lab projects should meet those requirements.  For the six-penny 

project we should look at something else.  She mentioned a retail pharmacy or in-house PET Scan 

area.  Ms. Love agreed with the use of the State funds versus the SPT funds.  Mr. Kelsey did share 

his concern of a retail pharmacy project as it would compete with private business.  Some projects 

currently on the list include: 

 

 Medical Imaging x-ray rooms – new digital rooms will bring higher reimbursement 

 Fixed Pet Scan – potential increased volumes with more availability 

 Retail pharmacy 

 Lab expansion – outside entrance to accommodate patients 

 Foundation Lab remodel  

 Behavioral Health suite – outpatient services 

 Cardiac Cath Lab – included in Kaufman Hall consulting engagement 

 Surgical suites – moving central sterile upstairs 

 Dialysis – potential move to increased home treatment 

 

New Business 

 

Ms. Richardson gave a recap of what was discussed at the Board meeting.  She said looking at 

projections we have asked to freeze capital for the first quarter of the year.  We want to make 

sure we are managing our cash based on the projections and will review monthly. Mr. Tardoni 

agreed with this and said we need to watch it closely.  Mr. Kelsey shared his concern with the 

financial situation and the external forces working against the hospital.  He said it is prudent to 

hold off on projects not prudent at this time.  Ms. Love reminded the committee that we do still 

have $500,000 in the county maintenance fund.  She said we should be able to complete the Bulk 

Oxygen project with these funds. 

 

Other Business 

 

The next meeting will be held February 15, 2022 at 3:30 p.m. Mr. Kelsey adjourned the meeting 

at 4:06 p.m. 

 
 

 

Submitted by Tami Love 

83/87



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…January Compliance Committee 
Date:  January 27, 2022 
 
The full Compliance Committee did not meet in January; however, a smaller group met to 
discuss two items. 
 
Risk Management 
Irene conveyed to the group her thoughts on risk management. In a nutshell, she believes that 
MHSC is performing all the core risk management functions already. She does not believe we 
need to have a specific individual serve as Risk Manager at MHSC. 
 
I agree with Irene. I believe risk management to be a very important function and further, 
believe it is closely tied to compliance. However, at our relatively small hospital facing 
significant financial pressures, I believe Irene’s position is the correct one and I support her 
position. 
 
Compliance 
The group discussed the most recent draft of the Compliance Program/Plan document 
prepared by Suzan Campbell. 
 
The group made good progress and I believe that at the February Compliance Committee 
meeting, the Committee will approve the document so it can be presented to the Board of 
Trustees at the March meeting. 

84/87



 

Minutes 

Governance Committee Meeting 

January 20, 2022 

Present: Taylor Jones, Barbara Sowada, and Irene Richardson 

Call to Order: Taylor Jones called the Zoom meeting to order at 11:00 am 

Agenda was approved as written 

Minutes had been previously approved 

Old Business 

 1. The CEO Evaluation policy was reviewed and deemed ready for the first reading by the Board.  

New Business 

 1. At the January, Board meeting this Committee was tasked with bringing a new slate of 

iProtean videos forward for Board education. Marty had suggested Enterprise Risk videos and Ed had 

suggested financial videos. It was decided that education for the next three months would be financial 

videos, of Ed’s choosing. The Committee has asked Ed to look for videos that include information about 

strategic planning or dealing with the financial impact of covid. Enterprise Risk videos would be saved 

for the last quarter of the fiscal year.  

 2. According to the Board Bylaws, it’s the duty of the president of the Board to appoint 

committee members. To fill a physician vacancy in the Quality Committee, Taylor appointed Dr. Jacques 

Denker, who has agreed to fill this vacancy. The appointment will be confirmed by a letter from Kerry 

Downs.  

The meeting was adjourned at 12:30 pm. 

Next meeting is Thursday February 10, 2022, at 11:00 am by Zoom. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Barbara J. Sowada, Ph.D. 

85/87



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

Governance Committee Meeting 

January 20, 2022 

Agenda 

Old Business 

 1. Potential policies 

  a. Executive evaluation policy 

New Business 

 1.  Board education…next iProtean videos for next six months 

 3. Dr. Denker appointment to Quality Committee 

 4. Other 

 

 

 

86/87



87/87


	Agenda - February 2 2022 Mtg
	Our Mission and Vision
	Minutes
	Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment
	Human Resources Charter
	CEO Evaluation
	Quality Committee
	HR Chair Report to Board Jan22 Barbara Sowada
	Human Resources Minutes January 2022 Draft
	F&A chair report JANUARY 2022 Tardoni
	Finance and Audit Comm Minutes January 27 2022
	December 21 Narrative report
	22 MHSC Combined Financial Statements 123121 v2
	22 MHSC Clinic Financial Statements 123121
	CASH DISBURSEMENTS-DEC
	FY22 County Maintenance & Title 25 Voucher-Dec
	Building and Grounds...Chair&apos;s Report...January, 2022 Kelsey
	Building and Grounds Comm Minutes January 18 2022 Draft
	Compliance Committee
	Governance Committee Minutes Jan 20 2022
	Governance Committee Agenda Jan 20 2022
	iProtean

